a
J)

>, Earth Negotiations Bulletin
"AReporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/biodiv/cop5/

Vol. 9 No. 152

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11ISD)

Wednesday, 17 May 2000

CBD COP-5HIGHLIGHTS:
TUESDAY, 16 MAY 2000

On the second day of CBD COP-5, delegatesmet in amorning
Plenary to continue discussions on the Cartagena Protocol and to
hear reports of the Globa Environment Facility (GEF), of the
Panel of Experts on Access and Benefit-Sharing, on the Adminis-
tration of the Convention and on the Budget for the Trust Fund. In
the afternoon, Working Group | (WG-I) addressed sustainable use,
including tourism, and incentive measures. Working Group 1
(WG-I1) discussed access to genetic resources.

PLENARY

At the opening of the Plenary, COP-5 President FrancisNyenze
nominated Marinavon Weissenberg (Finland) asthe meeting's
rapporteur and [lona Jepsen (L atvia) for the verification of creden-
tials, which was approved.

REPORT ON THE STATUSOF THE CARTAGENA
PROTOCOL : COP-5 President Nyenze noted that discussion on
theissue would continue from the previous day. ALGERIA, the
BAHAMAS, CHINA, ETHIOPIA, KENYA, LESOTHO, MADA-
GASCAR, MEXICO, NIGERIA, NORWAY, the REPUBLIC OF
KOREA, TOGO, ZIMBABWE and the COMMONWEALTH
SECRETARIAT expressed support for the proposed work plan of
the Intergovernmental Committee for the Cartagena Protocol
(ICCP). HAITI, NAMIBIA and MALAY SIA opposed renegoti-
ating the work plan. NEW ZEALAND supported a step-by-step
approach and prioritized organi zational issues, the CHM and
capacity-building. BANGLADESH called for amechanism to
addresstraining and capacity-building. Numerous countries also
stressed theimportance of capacity-building and information
sharing. JAPAN reguested discussion on adequate and effective
information exchange structures and areview of the existing
CHM. GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL objected to requesting
the private sector to provide support for capacity-building efforts.

BOLIVIA, CHAD and CUBA stressed theimportance of
developing national legidation. GAMBIA noted the need to inte-
grate national guidelinesand the CartagenaProtocol. ALGERIA,
KENYA, LESOTHO, NIGERIA and the REPUBLIC OF KOREA
emphasi zed establishment of abiosafety CHM. The USrecom-
mended focusing the work plan and avoiding work on issues
outside the ICCP's mandate, such asliability, and Articles5 (Phar-
maceuticals) and 6 (Transit and Contained Use). EGY PT, EL
SALVADOR, ETHIOPIA, MALAY SIA, NAMIBIA, NEW
ZEALAND and NORWAY announced their intent to sign the
Protocol during COP-5. The BAHAMAS, EL SALVADOR and
LESOTHO called for signature and early ratification of the
Protocol.

MADAGASCAR and NAMIBIA highlighted the need to
strengthen UNEP s pilot project on biosafety in devel oping coun-
tries. The COMMONWEALTH SECRETARIAT stressed that the
implementati on process must be understood by all stakeholders.
NIGERIA expressed concern over terminator technologies, high-
lighting potential threatsto food security. Ambassador Philémon
Yang (Cameroon), Chair of the |CCP Bureau, noted that the work
planismerely alist of suggestionsand that he would initiate
informal consultationson how to proceed.

REPORT OF THE GEF: The GEF SECRETARIAT intro-
duced areport detailing the GEF's activitiesrelevant to the CBD
from January 1998 to June 1999 (UNEP/CBD/COP/5/7). He
invited proposalsfrom countrieson, inter alia, alien species,
taxonomy, inland waters, forest issues, the CHM, incentive
measures and access and benefit-sharing (ABS). NIGERIA,
speaking for the G-77/CHINA, urged the GEF to provide devel-
oping countrieswith clear information on how to access funds.

REPORT OF THE EXPERTSPANEL ON ACCESSAND
BENEFIT-SHARING: COSTA RICA introduced the report of
the Experts Panel on ABS (UNEP/CBD/COP/5/8). He under-
scored the importance of information exchange and capacity-
building and noted key conclusions were adopted by the Panel.

REPORTSON ADMINISTRATIVE AND BUDGETARY
MATTERS: CBD Executive Secretary Hamdallah Zedan intro-
duced the report on the administration of the Convention and the
budget for the Convention'strust fund (UNEP/CBD/COP/5/9),
noting that it detailsthe status of the CBD Secretariat's budget
since COP-4, the three trust funds, implementation of the host
government agreement and contributionsto the voluntary trust
fund. Regarding the proposed budget for the biennium 2001-2002
(UNEP/CBD/COP/5/18 and UNEP/CBD/COP/5/18/Add.1), he
noted that it incorporates the financial implications of the
numerous recommendations to the COP adopted by intersessional
meetings, and builds on the Secretariat's existing activities. The
NETHERLANDS encouraged the Secretariat to maximize use of
resources outside the Convention. A contact group on budgetary
matters, chaired by John Ashe (Antiguaand Barbuda), was estab-
lished.

WORKING GROUP |

SUSTAINABLE USE AND INCENTIVE MEASURES:
WG-I Chair Peter Schei (Norway) suggested that sustainable use,
including tourism (UNEP/CBD/COP/5/20), and incentive
measures (UNEP/CBD/COP/5/15), be addressed simultaneously
inorder tointegrate them into one decision. SBSTTA-5 Chair Cris-
tian Samper (Colombia) introduced SBSTTA recommendations
IV/7 on devel opment of approaches and practicesfor the sustain-

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Chango Bai <changbobai @hotmail.com>, Stas Burgiel <stas@iisd.org>, Laura
Ivers <laurai @iisd.org>, Jessica Suplie <jsuplie@iisd.org> and Elsa Tsioumani <elsa@iisd.org>. The Digital Editors are Andrei Henry <andrei @iisd.org> and Nabiha
Megateli <nmegateli @iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Director is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the
United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department for International Devel opment
(DFID) and the European Commission (DG-ENV). General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and
the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of Austria, the Ministries of
Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the Government of
Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. Logistical support has been provided at this
meeting by UNEP. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at
<info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of
the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications
only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the
Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.callinkages. The satellite image was taken above Nairobi
©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to the Managing Director at <kimo@iisd.org>.




Wednesday, 17 May 2000

Vol. 9 No. 152 Page 2

able use of biological resources and the assessment of interlinkages
between tourism and biodiversity, and /12 on sustainable use of
biodiversity asa cross-cutting issue.

Several delegations expressed support for the SBSTTA recom-
mendations and for the sustainable use of biological resources
through an ecosystem approach. PORTUGAL, on behalf of the EU
and supported by SWITZERLAND, called for synergy with the
CSD ontheinternational guidelinesfor activitiesrelated to sustain-
abletourism and referred to the International Ecotourism Year in
2002. JAPAN underscored theimportance of public education.
NORWAY said the establishment of mechanismsfor intersectoral
dialogueisaprerequisite for successful sustainable use and,
supported by CANADA, ECUADOR and PERU, asked for princi-
plesand criteriato be developed in thematic areas. SWITZER-
LAND called for adefinition of ecotourism and for discussion
under other sectoral activities, such asagriculture. LATVIA, on
behalf of the CEE, highlighted the involvement of stakeholders.
KENYA and UGANDA stressed local community involvement
and benefit. The GAMBIA called for definition of stakeholders
roles, especially local communities. CHINA questioned how to
sustainably develop tourism to benefit local communities without
threatening ecosystems and species.

MONGOLIA andthe RUSSIAN FEDERATION highlighted
their Altai-Sayan Millennium Initiative. The G-77/CHINA stressed
the conservation of culture and recognition of traditional know!-
edge and indigenous technologies. MALAW!I noted that at arecent
forum the Southern African Development Community (SADC)
adopted the Malawi Principlesfor an ecosystem approach and
recommended that the [UCN principles on sustainable use be
adopted. GHANA, ZIMBABWE and otherscalled for case studies.
SAMOA called for environmental audits, human resource
capacity-building and private sector cooperation. The BAHAMAS
supported a country-driven approach to addressing sustainable
tourism. The CM S underscored migratory species valuefor
sustainable tourism. The DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF
CONGO called for protection of biodiversity from attacks during
war.

Several delegations supported the use of incentive measures.
The EU emphasized theinternalization of biodiversity valuein
cost-benefit analysisand the need for biodiversity considerationsin
liability mechanisms. AUSTRALIA highlighted the work of the
Ramsar Convention, [UCN and the OECD regarding positive
incentives. TheNETHERL ANDS supported collaboration with the
OECD and IUCN. CANADA, JAPAN and TURKEY asked for
further analysis of incentives. KENYA requested financial support
for case studies. MEXICO noted that Central American case
studiesare available. The G-77/CHINA requested inclusion of
information on incentive measuresin national reports and the
establishment of an expert group on incentive measures.
UGANDA requested assistancein using incentives.

WORKING GROUP I

ACCESSTO GENETIC RESOURCES: WG-II Chair Elaine
Fisher (Jamaica) opened deliberations on accessto genetic
resources, and the Secretariat introduced the relevant documents
(UNEP/CBD/COP/5/4, 8 and 21). Many del egations supported
extending the mandate of the Expert Panel, and proceeding with
development of international guidelineson ABS, and requested the
Secretariat to continue work with other international organizations
onissuesrelated to intellectual property rights (IPRs). The EC
noted that an Ad Hoc Open-ended Working Group would allow for
abroader participatory approach. SWITZERLAND also stressed
broader participation and suggested arapid start to developing
international guidelines. MEXICO supported devel oping acode of
conduct, and said there should be standard legislation for al coun-
tries. Many devel oping countries stressed the need for institutional
and legal capacity-building and for information exchange.

NORWAY noted connections with COP discussions on agrobiodi-
versity and Article 8(j) and suggested, with CANADA, CHINA,
COLOMBIA, the EC, the EU and the RUSSIAN FEDERATION, a
comprehensive approach allowing the CBD to play aproactiverole
within other relevant international fora.

NAMIBIA recommended across-sectoral approachto ABSin
national strategies. ARGENTINA stated that ABSisan economic
concern and that national egislation should take thisinto consider-
ation. INDIA and NIGERIA highlighted the need for legislation
and control measuresin resource-user countriesto complement
legal measuresin resource-provider countries. ETHIOPIA and
PERU stressed the need for strong protective measuresin provider
countries. TURKEY stressed the need to recognize the country of
originin ABS agreements and highlighted the need for control
mechanisms. JAPAN suggested establishment of international
focal pointsand national competent authorities. POLAND stated
that ABS palicies should be reflected in national biodiversity strat-
egiesand action plans. VENEZUELA commended the GEF for
deeming theissue apriority. PAPUA NEW GUINEA introduced
the proposals of the Pacific Island workshop, particularly forma-
tion of |legidative and administrative measures and devel opment of
incentive and control measuresfor ABS arrangements by user
countries.

ETHIOPIA and INDIA highlighted theissue of IPRs, and
INDIA endorsed the recommendation to further explorethe
compatibility of the Agreement on Trade Related Aspects of Intel-
lectual Property Rights (TRIPs) and CBD objectives. NORWAY
requested the Secretariat to continue collecting information on
| PR-related i ssues and countries to address thisissue within the
TRIPsCouncil. TURKEY noted that sui generissystems are neces-
sary to accommodate differing national circumstances. ETHIOPIA
called for addressing ex situ collections acquired prior to the entry
into force of the Convention in greater detail. BRAZIL questioned
the approach within the FAO to renegotiating the International
Undertaking on Plant Genetic Resources (1U), and suggested that
theissue be addressed under the CBD. Chair Fisher noted that
discussions on access to genetic resources would continue and
asked delegatesto hold informal consultations on how to addressex
situ collections.

IN THE BREEZEWAYS

Asdelegates |aunched into discussions on accessto genetic
resources, many noted linkages with other international fora
currently under review. Some participants pondered how the
ongoing TRIPS review, particularly on biodiversity-related issues,
and the bel eaguered renegotiation of the International Undertaking
would impact and beimpacted by COP-5’sdecisions.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

WORKING GROUP |: WG-I will meet at 10:00 amin
Conference Room 2 to discuss on dryland biodiversity and
consider Chair’stext on incentives and sustainable use.

WORKING GROUP I I: WG-I1 will meet at 10:00amin
Conference Room 1 to continue discussionson ABS, | PRs and ex
situ genetic resources. Results of theinformal discussionson ex
situ collections are expected.

COMMUNITY-BASED CONSERVATION: A lunchtime
presentation on Community-Based Biodiversity Conservation will
beheld at 2:45 pmin Tent 2.

BIODIVERSITY INCENTIVES: A lunchtime session on
OECD/IUCN work on biodiversity incentiveswill be held from
1:00-2:30 pmin Conference Room 1.

RIVER BASIN INITIATIVE: A lunchtime event promating
the CBD-Ramsar Joint Work Plan and River Basin Initiative will
take place from 1:00-1:40 pm in Conference Room 2.



